








Dedication

It is with much pleasure
and esteem that the members of Holy Trini-
ty Parish dedicate this souvenir history to
the pioneer members of the parish, both liv-
ing and dead, for their self-sacrificing spirit
in which they founded and built this parish.

Holy Trinity Congregation
La Crosse, Wis., 1937






OUR HOLY FATHER, POPE PIOUS XI
Now Gloriously Reigning

“The Pope of Catholie Action”
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HIS EXCELLENCY, THE MOST REV. ALEXANDER J. McGAVICK, D. D.

Bishop of La Crosse



HIS EXCELLENCY, THE MOST REV. WM. R. GRIFFIN, D. D,

Auxiliary Bishop of La Crosse



His Exeellency, The Most Reverend
BISHOP KILLIAN C. FLASCH,
Former Bishop of La Crosse
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His Fxcellency, The Most Reverend
BISHOP JAMES J. SCHWEBACH
Former Bishop of La Crosse



RT. REV. MSGR. JOSEPH RIESTERER,
Former Pastor



THE VERY REV. C. W. GILLE, DEAN
Our Pastor
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THE REV. ALOYSIUS F. BAUMANN,

Assistant Pastor
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Exdterior af 3{0[@/ Cn’m’fy Church




x\n.‘_.:qm@ %ﬁ:.ﬁ...@ @aw.ﬁm ,.\\,e 4

(011 n\mm...“,

13



Prefoce

® A few words of explanation may be in or-
der. This small book is an sttempt to give a brief
stary of Holy Trinity Congregation from its begin-
ning to the present time. The reader will readily
understand that to give such a history is quite an
undertaking. The writers have tried to be as accu-
rate as possible. The material was gathered from
various sources - - much of it was gathered from
the older members of the parish as they remember-
ed the events of many years ago. Naturally there
are different versions of various events. The writ-
ers have tried to be accurate and fairly complete.
No doubt some items that should have been inclu-
ded have been omitted. There have been errors
committed and names omitted. The writers have
tried their best. [f names have been omitted or if
there are inaccuracies, the writérs are sorry that
such is the case. With this thought in mind it is
hoped that the readers will read with not too cri-
tical a mind.

e This opportunity is taken to thank most sin-
cere]y all those who have he|ped to make this
~ souvenir history possible.
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Fifty Yoars Hstor
[ l/ ecrs i.ﬁ.o.?f/
of
ﬂo[y 6}‘.{)21&/ Church
As the writer of these listorical notes concerned with the hifty vear
life span of Holy Trinity parish, meditated upon the problem of how to

introduce his subject, he happened to glance out into the tree lined streets
now surrounding the parish buildings and there under the beautiful trees

WD

Father Joseph Wiedman

irolicked happy children enjoying to the full the shade and heauty those
trees provided for them. The picture was not the same fiftv vears ago.
At that time the scene was quite different. Only a few homes interrupted
the level area of the prairie extending from the shores of the Mississippi
to the stone-faced vet picturesque bluffs east of that river. There was
as vet no indication of the large and active parish that now inhabits
ITs acres.
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[t was fifty years ago, due to the ever increasing Catholic population
of La Crosse, that Rt. Rev. Bishop Flasch deemed it necessary to
establish two new parishes, namely St. John's on the north side and
what is now known as Holv Trinity on the south side of La Crosse,

On May 10, 1887, under the chairmanship of Father Joseph Wied-
man, a meeting was held in the Nic Gilles grocery store, corner of 12th

CoRAY

Mr. Peter Gilles

and Denton streets, to establish a new parish for the Catholics living
in the southern part of Lla Crosse. The following were present: Jacob
Arenz, Joseph Locher, Nicolaus Gilles, John Schneider, Peter Neurater,
Adolph Kuhlman, John Gehlen, John Strasser, Nicolaus Hettinger, John
Hensgen, John Gerard, Peter Federel, Henry Gilles and Peter Gilles,
The last man mentioned is the only member of this committee still
among the living. It was unanimously decided at this meeting to buyv
the six lots between North and South Park streets for parish use and to
undertake immediately the construction of church bwlding 24" by 64
with full basement and two stories, the first story serving for school
purposes and the second as a church. 5t. Nicholas was chosen as the
patron of the parish and consequently the parish became known as the
St. Nicholas parish,

Joseph Leinfelder was asked to draw up the plans for the new
building while F. Lang was awarded the contract for digging the hase-
ment. Peter Federel and William Klosheim were directed to furnish
the stones for the masonry work which was done by John Martin whose
wages for the work amounted to $178.00.
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The next meeting was called at St. Joseph's reetory on June 22,
1887, The contract for the brick layving and plastering was given to
August Heideman at $518.00. The carpenter work was awarded to Carl

=
Bartz for §277.00. The lumber required for the building was ordered

ST. NICHOLAS CHURCH AND SCHOOL

from John Paul for $284000. Mr. Larson was given the contract to
furnish the doors, windows, and interior hnishing material for $318,00.
Dominic and Tavlor Mader obtained the contract to furnish the brick
at $6.00 per thousand.,  The six lots had heen purchased for §1482.75.
It was also reported at this meeting that the Rt. Rev. Bishop Flasch had
enlarged the huilding fund with a donation of ifty dollars. The building
fund was, however, found inadequate to meet the demands on hand
and it was found necessary to cover all the church property by a mortgage
of $2,500.00, which mortgage was given to William Zander. The work
progressed nicely and the building was ready for use by fall.

The parishioners with a just pride in their hearts witnessed the
dedication of their new church to St. Nicholas by the Rt. Rev. Bishop
[Flasch on Sunday, October 30, 1887, The first Holy Mass was sung on
Tuesday, November 8  The school had opened the day after the dedica-
tion.  The Francisean Sisters of Perpetual Adoration consented to supply
the teachers for the school. Sister Rosina and Sister Leonina did the
pioneer teaching at the school, beginning with seventy-two pupils in their
charge. How the teachers and pupils struggled through the first years
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